
                 Michael Torelli, Chairman • Dean Tamburri, Vice Chairman • Vincent Odock, Secretary • James Rinaldi, Board Member 
         Susan Walski, Board Member • Marc Greene, Board Member • Giovanni Palladino, Board Member 

 William Fioravanti, Chief Executive Officer • Susan R. Katzoff, General Counsel • Christopher C. Canada, Bond Counsel 

 Agenda
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, The Orange County Industrial Development Agency will hold a regularly scheduled meeting on 
February 15, 2023, immediately following the Orange County Funding Corporation meeting which starts after the 
4:30pm Finance Committee meeting at the Orange County Government Center, 255 Main St., Goshen NY in the First 
Floor Community Room to consider and/or act upon the following: 

Order of Business 

• Call Meeting to Order

• Pledge of Allegiance
• Roll Call

• Minutes

o Approval of Minutes from January 18th, 2023 Board of Directors Meeting
• Reports

o Committee Reports
• Finance Committee – Michael Torelli
• Governance Committee – Michael Torelli

o Chairman’s Report
o CEO Report

• New Business
o Scannell Properties #600, LLC

• Initial Resolution
o Approval of January Financials
o Approval of January/February Payables
o 360 Middletown Holdings STE Extension
o Revised Application for Incentives
o Revised By-Laws
o Revised Fee Schedule
o OCIDA Headquarters Lease

• Adjournment
To watch the livestream, please visit our website: www.ocnyida.com 

Dated: February 08, 2023 By:  William Fioravanti – Chief Executive Officer 

1

http://www.ocnyida.com/


 

  
 

                    Michael Torelli, Chairman • Dean Tamburri, Vice Chairman • Vincent Odock, Secretary • James Rinaldi, Board Member 
                                           Susan Walski, Board Member • Marc Greene, Board Member • Giovanni Palladino, Board Member 

            Bill Fioravanti, Chief Executive Officer • Susan R. Katzoff, General Counsel • Christopher C. Canada, Bond Counsel                                           
 
 

Date: 
From: 
RE: 

         January 26, 2023  
       Mike Torelli  
       Next Meeting Date 

 

 
 
 
 

The next Board of Directors meeting of the 
Orange County Industrial Development Agency is : 

 
                        Wednesday, February 15, 2023 

              immediately following the                                       
5:30pm OCFC meeting  

                                    
         OC Government Center 
        255 Main Street, Goshen 

                                              Community Room 
 
 

To watch the livestream, please visit our website: www.ocnyida.com 
 
 
 

Orange County Industrial Development Agency 
4 Crotty Lane, Suite 100 • New Windsor, NY 12553 

Phone: (845) 234-4192 • Fax: (845) 220-2228 • Email: business@ocnyida.com 

IDA Board Meeting Notice 

2

mailto:business@ocnyida.com


Orange County Industrial Development Agency 
4 Crotty Lane 

New Windsor, NY 12553 
Tel (845) 234-4192 

                 
 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes  
Wednesday, January 18, 2022 

              
Board Members Present: Michael Torelli, Dean Tamburri, Dr. Vincent Odock, Marc Greene, 
Giovanni Palladino, James Rinaldi, Susan Walski 
 
Staff Present: Bill Fioravanti, Marty Borrás, Sue Katzoff (via Zoom), Dennis Brady (via Zoom) 
 
              
 
I. Call Meeting to Order 
 
Chairman Torelli called the meeting to order at 6:24 p.m. 
 
II. Roll Call 
 
Mr. Fioravanti acknowledged that all Board members were present. 
 
III. Proof of Notice 

 
Mr. Fioravanti acknowledged that notice of the meeting had been timely and properly provided. 
 
IV. Minutes 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM THE DECEMBER 21, 2022, OCIDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING WAS MADE BY MRS. WALSKI, SECONDED BY 
DR. ODOCK, AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
V. Executive Session  

Start 6:26 pm End 7:15pm 
 
MOTION TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS PERSONNEL AND 
POTENTIAL LITIGATION WAS MADE BY MR. PALLADINO, SECONDED BY MR. 
TAMBURRI, AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
MOTION TO AUTHORIZE COUNSEL TO INTERVIEW POTENTIAL WITNESSES IN 
CONNECTION WITH POTENTIAL LITIGATION WAS MADE BY MR. TAMBURRI, 
SECONDED BY MR. GREENE, AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 
 

3



MOTION TO APPROVE A 5% RAISE FOR THE TWO ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 
MEMBERS WAS MADE BY MRS. WALSKI, SECONDED BY DR. ODOCK, AND PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE A 5% RAISE FOR THE CEO WAS MADE BY MRS. WALSKI, 
SECONDED BY MR. TAMBURRI, AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
MOTION TO LEAVE EXECUTIVE SESSION AT 7:14 PM WAS MADE BY MR. TAMBURRI, 
SECONDED BY CHAIRMAN TORELLI, AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
VI. Reports 
 
Finance Committee: Chairman stated that the Finance reports were reviewed, and staff reviews 
and compensation discussed. 
 
Governance Committee: Chairman noted that revising some of the OCIDA’s policies, voting 
upon updates and new OCIDA headquarters would be discussed in the New Business portion of 
the meeting. He discussed future Governance topics; staff retreats and the shovel ready program. 
 
Chairman’s Report: The Chairman thanked staff, the Board, and the Consultants for a 
successful 2022 and noted that staff evaluations had been completed and noted that Board 
members had attended a monthly Chamber meeting. 
 
CEO Report: Mr. Fioravanti stated that the 2022 audit underway and that the auditors would be 
at the headquarters the following week. He stated that PARIS reporting was on due March 31, 
and that the audit would also need to be completed and approved. He noted that Shovel Ready 
was ongoing and he has had a handful of meetings with Delaware Engineering and that the 
Shovel Ready Community survey for would roll out soon to the public in an effort to get 
information on what the public wants to see. He also advised that a Project Banner had been 
purchased for Green Thumb Industries. 
 
VII. New Business 
 
Approval of December 2022 Financials: The Chairman noted that the reports were reviewed at 
the Finance Committee meeting, he also noted that the OCIDA came in at $638,000 below its 
budgeted expenses and stated that the committee recommended the report be presented to the full 
Board for consideration. 
 
A MOTION TO APPROVE THE DECEMBER 2022 FINANCIALS AS PRESENTED 
WAS MADE BY MR PALLADINO, SECONDED BY MR. GREENE, AND PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
December 2022 – January 2023 Payables: Payables were reviewed at the Finance Committee 
meeting and a recommendation was made to present it to the full Board for consideration. 
 
A MOTION TO APPROVE THE DECEMBER 2022 – JANUARY 2023 PAYABLES AS 
PRESENTED WAS MADE BY MRS. WALSKI, SECONDED BY DR. ODOCK, AND 
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

4



Approval of proposed Recapture Policy: The policy was discussed at the Governance 
Committee meeting with a request for Counsel to review and revise. Counsel noted that while the 
policies are available to the public, they are included in the UTEP policy and therefore or not as 
easily visible. She noted what General Municipal Law required and suggested the policies be 
separated from the UTEP policy and posted as stand-alone documents. She requested that the 
Board wait to approve the amendments. 
 
MOTION TO DUPLICATE THE RECAPTURE POLICY AND THE PROJECT 
APPROVAL POLICY IN STAND-ALONE SUBSEQUENT DUPLICATE FORM ON 
THE WEBSITE WAS MADE BY CHAIRMAN TORELLI, SECONDED BY MS. 
WALSKI, AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Approval of proposed Fee Structure: Mr. Fioravanti shared an example of what other regional 
IDAs charge for various services in addition to the application fee. The Chairman suggested 
tabling the topic so that the Board members can thoroughly review the report and discuss it the 
February 7th, 2023, Governance Committee meeting. 
 
MOTION TO TABLE THE PROPOSED FEE STRUCTURE AS PRESENTED WAS 
MADE BY MRS. WALSKI, SECONDED BY MR. GREENE, AND PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Approval of addition to Local Labor Policy: The Chairman discussed adding Delaware 
County to the current Labor Policy. 
 
A MOTION TO APPROVE THE ADDITION TO OCIDA’S CURRENT LOCAL LABOR 
POLICY AS PRESENTED WAS MADE BY MRS. WALSKI, SECONDED BY 
CHAIRMAN TORELLI, AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
OCIDA Headquarters Lease: Mr. Fioravanti gave a presentation of various class A office 
options in Goshen and New Windsor. The Chairman requested that a vote be tabled until the 
Board tours some of the options presented. 
 
VIII. Adjournment 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN THE MEETING WAS MADE BY MRS. WALSKI, 
SECONDED BY MR. RINALDI, AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
THE MEETING CLOSED AT 9:00 PM 

5



INITIAL RESOLUTION 
(Scannell Properties #600, LLC and Amazon.com Services LLC Project) 

 
A regular meeting of the Orange County Industrial Development Agency held on 

February 15, 2023 at 4:30 p.m. (local time) at the Orange County Government Center 
Community Room, 255 Main Street, Goshen, New York. 
 
 The meeting was called to order by _________________ and upon the roll being duly 
called, the following members were: 
  
 MEMBERS PRESENT: 
 
 THE FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT: 
 

The following Resolution was offered by _________ and seconded by ___________: 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE ORANGE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (i) ACCEPTING THE APPLICATION OF 
SCANNELL PROPERTIES #600, LLC AND AMAZON.COM SERVICES 
LLC WITH RESPECT TO A CERTAIN PROJECT; (ii) DESCRIBING 
THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE BEING REQUESTED WITH RESPECT 
TO SUCH PROJECT; AND (iii) AUTHORIZING A PUBLIC HEARING 
WITH RESPECT TO SUCH PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, by Title I of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of 

New York, as amended, and Chapter 390 of the Laws of 1972 of the State of New York, 
(hereinafter collectively called the "Act"), the Orange County Industrial Development Agency 
(hereinafter called the "Agency") was  created  with  the authority and power, and for the purpose 
of, among other things, acquiring, constructing, reconstructing and equipping manufacturing, 
warehousing, research, commercial, or industrial facilities as  authorized  by  the Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, Scannell Properties #600, LLC and Amazon.com Services LLC, each a 

Delaware limited liability company, each for itself or on behalf of an entity to be formed 
(collectively, the "Company"), has submitted an application (the "Application") to the Agency 
requesting the Agency's assistance with a certain project (the "Project"), consisting of: (A)(i) the 
acquisition of a leasehold interest in an aggregate approximately 100 acres of land located at 22 
McBride Road (Tax Map No. 15-1-63.21), Hoops Road (Tax Map No. 11-1-34.34) and portions 
of the following: 3079 Route 6 (Tax Map No. 11-1-34.1), 3141 Route 6 (Tax Map No. 11-1-41), 
3071 Route 6 (Tax Map No. 11-1-34.31), Hoops Road (Tax Map No. 11-1-34.32) and Hoops 
Road (Tax Map No. 11-1-34.33), all in Wawayanda, New York (collectively, the “Land”); (ii) 
the demolition of certain structures and the construction of an approximately 925,000 sq.ft. 
distribution center/warehouse, including office space, specializing in distribution and delivery, 
site improvements including stormwater controls, utility improvements, including but not limited 
to, water, sewer, pumpstation, electric, gas, car parking spaces, trailer/truck storage spaces, 
loading docks, dark-sky compliant lighting, sound barrier walls and landscaping (collectively, 
the “Facility”); (iii) the acquisition and installation in and on the Facility of furniture, fixtures 

6



and equipment (collectively, the “Equipment” and together with the Land and the Facility, the 
“Project Facility”); (B) the granting of certain financial assistance in the form of exemptions 
from State and local sales and use tax and mortgage recording tax (collectively, the “Financial 
Assistance”); (C) the appointment of the Company or its designee as an agent of the Agency in 
connection with the acquisition, construction, equipping and completion of the Project Facility; 
and (D) the acquisition of an interest in the Land and Facility by the Agency pursuant to a lease 
agreement and the acquisition of an interest in the Equipment pursuant to a bill of sale from the 
Company to the Agency; and the sublease of the Project Facility back to the Company pursuant 
to a leaseback agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, the Agency desires 
to adopt a resolution describing the Project and the Financial Assistance (as defined below) that 
the Agency is contemplating with respect to the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law of the State of 
New York, as amended, and the regulations of the Department of Environmental Conservation of 
the State of New York promulgated thereunder (collectively referred to hereinafter as “SEQRA”), 
the Agency is required to make a determination with respect to the environmental impact of any 
“action” (as said quoted term is defined in SEQRA) to be taken by the Agency and the approval of 
the Project constitutes such an action; and 
 

WHEREAS, Scannell Properties #600, LLC prepared and submitted a Full 
Environmental Assessment Form ("EAF") to the Town of Wawayanda Planning Board to obtain 
approval for a project that is substantially similar to the Project being undertaken by the Agency;  
  

WHEREAS, the Town of Wawayanda Planning Board determined that the project before 
it and described in the EAF constituted a "Type I" action and appointed itself to act as "lead 
agency" for purposes of a conducting a "coordinated review" (as said quoted terms are defined in 
SEQRA); and 
  
            WHEREAS, on October 12, 2022, the Town of Wawayanda Planning Board, as lead 
agency, and consistent with the procedures and criteria set forth in 6 NYCRR 617.7, analyzed the 
relevant areas of environmental concern using the SEQRA standards and ultimately determined 
that the project would not have a significant adverse impact on the environment, and adopted a 
Negative Declaration ("Negative Declaration"), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 
"A"; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has not approved undertaking the Project or granting the 
Financial Assistance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the grant of Financial Assistance to the Project is subject to, among other 
things, the Agency finding after a public hearing pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act that the 
Project will serve the public purposes of the Act by promoting economically sound commerce 
and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of 
the people of the State or increasing the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the 
State. 

7



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE 
ORANGE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1. The Company has presented the Application in a form acceptable to the 
Agency. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Company's 
Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that: 
 

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers 
necessary and convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and 
to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act; and 

 
(B) The Project constitutes a “project” within the meaning of the Act; 

 
(C) The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein 

under the Act; and 
 

(D) The Financial Assistance contemplated with respect to the Project consists 
of assistance in the form of exemptions from State and local sales and use taxation and mortgage 
recording tax.  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop the 
Project, thereby increasing employment opportunities in Orange County, New York, and 
otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act; and 
 

SECTION 2. Each the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson and/or the Chief Executive 
Officer of the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to hold a public hearing 
pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act.  A public hearing with respect to the Project and Financial 
Assistance shall be scheduled with notice thereof published, and such notice, as applicable, shall 
further be sent to affected tax jurisdictions within which the Project is located. 

 
SECTION 3. The officers, employees and agents of the  Agency  are hereby  authorized 

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required 
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, 
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the 
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of 
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants 
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 
SECTION 4. The Secretary or the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency are hereby 

authorized to and may distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company and to do such further 
things or perform such acts as may be necessary or convenient to implement the provisions of this 
Resolution.  A copy of this Resolution shall be placed on file in the office of the Agency where the 
same shall be available for public inspection during business hours. 
 

SECTION 5. In the event that (a) the Company does not proceed to final Agency 
approval within six (6) months of the date hereof; and/or (b) close with the Agency on the 
proposed Financial Assistance within twelve (12) months of the date hereof, the Agency reserves 

8



the right to rescind and cancel this Resolution and all approvals made hereunder or under any 
other Agency resolution or action. 

 
SECTION 6. Bousquet Holstein PLLC, as counsel to the Agency, is hereby authorized 

to work with the Agency and others to prepare, for submission to the Chairman, Vice Chairman 
and/or Chief Executive Officer, all Documents necessary to effect the intent of this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 7. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately. 
 

 
The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to vote on roll call, 

which resulted as follows: 
 
 Yea Nay Absent Abstain 
     
     
     
     
     
     
 
 
 

The Resolutions were thereupon duly adopted. 
  
 
  
  

9



STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 
COUNTY OF ORANGE )  SS: 
 

I, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of the Orange County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 
 

That I have compared the foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the Orange 
County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency")  including  the  resolution  contained 
therein, held on February 15, 2023, with the original thereof on file in the office of  the Agency, 
and that the same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings  of the  Agency  and  of  such 
resolution set forth therein and of the whole of said  original  insofar  as the same  relates to  the 
subject matters therein referred to. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that all members of said Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the  
Public Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that 
public notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with Article 7. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present 
throughout said meeting. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force  
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 
 

IN WITNESS  WHEREOF,  I  have hereunto set my hand and seal of said Agency this 
________ day of February, 2023. 
 
 
              
      William Fioravanti, Chief Executive Officer  
 
(S E A L) 
  

10



EXHIBIT A 
 

NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



Actual Budget over Budget Actual Budget over Budget
Income
   40000 Application Fee 2,500.00  -2,500.00  0.00  30,000.00  -30,000.00  
   40300 Closing Fees 535,000.00  56,375.00  478,625.00  535,000.00  676,500.00  -141,500.00  
   41000 Local Labor Auditing Fees Income (pass-
thru) 7,500.00  -7,500.00  0.00  90,000.00  -90,000.00  
   42000 Other IDA Fees 833.00  -833.00  0.00  10,000.00  -10,000.00  
   44000 Subtenant Rents 1,795.00  1,795.00  0.00  1,795.00  21,540.00  -19,745.00  
   49000 Interest Earnings 773.87  4,375.00  -3,601.13  773.87  52,500.00  -51,726.13  
Total Income $    537,568.87  $     73,378.00  $    464,190.87  $ 537,568.87  $    880,540.00  -$         342,971.13  
Gross Profit $    537,568.87  $     73,378.00  $    464,190.87  $ 537,568.87  $    880,540.00  -$         342,971.13  
Expenses
   60000 Administrative Costs 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  
      60002 Bank Service Charges 55.76  55.76  55.76  0.00  55.76  
      60003 CFO/Bookkeeping Services 1,700.00  -1,700.00  0.00  20,400.00  -20,400.00  
      60004 Fiscal Audit 0.00  2,917.00  -2,917.00  0.00  35,000.00  -35,000.00  
      60005 Insurance 1,643.06  2,583.00  -939.94  2,301.56  31,000.00  -28,698.44  
      60006 Office Supplies and Postage 367.31  867.00  -499.69  367.31  10,400.00  -10,032.69  
      60007 Professional Fees 300.00  -300.00  0.00  3,600.00  -3,600.00  
      60008 Travel, Lodging, Meals 159.82  333.00  -173.18  159.82  4,000.00  -3,840.18  
   Total 60000 Administrative Costs $         2,225.95  $       8,700.00  -$       6,474.05  $     2,884.45  $    104,400.00  -$         101,515.55  
   60200 Agency Support Expenses 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  
      60201 IT Support & Audio/Visual 770.35  4,583.00  -3,812.65  770.35  55,000.00  -54,229.65  
      60202 Marketing & PR 19.89  6,992.00  -6,972.11  19.89  83,900.00  -83,880.11  
      60203 Memberships and Events 2,000.00  500.00  1,500.00  2,000.00  6,000.00  -4,000.00  
      60204 Training and Education 375.00  -375.00  0.00  4,500.00  -4,500.00  
   Total 60200 Agency Support Expenses $         2,790.24  $     12,450.00  -$       9,659.76  $     2,790.24  $    149,400.00  -$         146,609.76  
   60400 Projects/Programs 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  
      60402 Cost-Benefit Analyses 417.00  -417.00  0.00  5,000.00  -5,000.00  
      60404 Legal Counsel 4,583.00  -4,583.00  0.00  55,000.00  -55,000.00  
      60405 Legal, Pass Thru 1,250.00  -1,250.00  0.00  15,000.00  -15,000.00  
      60406 Local Labor Auditing Fees Expense (pass-
thru) 4,000.00  -4,000.00  0.00  48,000.00  -48,000.00  
      60408 Shovel Ready Program 18,750.00  -18,750.00  0.00  225,000.00  -225,000.00  
   Total 60400 Projects/Programs $                 0.00  $     29,000.00  -$     29,000.00  $             0.00  $    348,000.00  -$         348,000.00  
   61000 Payroll Expenses 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  
      61001 Employee Benefits 2,527.45  3,048.00  -520.55  2,527.45  36,577.00  -34,049.55  
      61002 Payroll Taxes & Fees (Staff Line) 2,985.26  2,127.00  858.26  2,985.26  25,530.00  -22,544.74  
      61003 Salaries 19,973.99  20,457.00  -483.01  19,973.99  245,480.00  -225,506.01  
   Total 61000 Payroll Expenses $       25,486.70  $     25,632.00  -$          145.30  $   25,486.70  $    307,587.00  -$         282,100.30  
   62000 Building Expenses 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  
      62002 Building Rent 10,443.75  5,738.00  4,705.75  10,443.75  68,850.00  -58,406.25  
      62003 Building Utilities 0.00  350.00  -350.00  0.00  4,200.00  -4,200.00  
      62006 Internet and Telephones 473.26  560.00  -86.74  473.26  6,720.00  -6,246.74  
      62007 Maintenance 1,140.00  1,287.00  -147.00  1,140.00  15,440.00  -14,300.00  
      62008 Repairs/Renovations 167.00  -167.00  0.00  2,000.00  -2,000.00  
   Total 62000 Building Expenses $       12,057.01  $       8,102.00  $        3,955.01  $   12,057.01  $      97,210.00  -$           85,152.99  
Total Expenses $       42,559.90  $     83,884.00  -$     41,324.10  $   43,218.40  $1,006,597.00  -$         963,378.60  
Net Operating Income $    495,008.97  -$   10,506.00  $    505,514.97  $ 494,350.47  -$  126,057.00  $          620,407.47  
Net Income $    495,008.97  -$   10,506.00  $    505,514.97  $ 494,350.47  -$  126,057.00  $          620,407.47  

Total

Friday, Feb 10, 2023 07:55:59 AM GMT-8 - Accrual Basis

Orange County Industrial Development Agency
Budget vs. Actuals: FY_2023 - FY23 P&L 

January 2023

Jan 2023

43



Listed in order of maturity date.
Purchase Maturity # of Interest Interest 

Date Date Months Bank Bank Balance Principal Rate Earned MTD
-- -- -- -- --

12/28/22 3/28/23 3 months TD Bank 3,000,000$              4.25% 4.25%
11/18/21 5/18/23 6 months TD Bank 3,000,000$              4.45% 4.45%
11/18/22 5/18/23 6 months Orange Bank & Trust 250,500$                  0.20% 0.20%
9/18/22 5/18/23 9 months Orange Bank & Trust 250,625$                  0.25% 0.25%
3/31/22 3/31/23 12 months Connect One 250,000$                  0.25% 0.25%
4/4/22 10/4/23 18 months Wallkill former Empire 251,248$                  0.60% 0.60%

6/22/22 5/22/24 23 months Connect One 400,000$                  1.9%% 1.90%
7/20/22 7/20/24 24 months Wallkill Valley Federal Savings & Loan 403,661$                  2.00% 2.00%
7/14/22 7/13/23 12 months First Federal Savings of Middletown 402,280$                  1.26% 1.26%
9/22/22 6/22/23 9 months Lakeland Bank 250,467$                  2.00% 2.00%

Bank Account Type Amount % of total
Chase Bank Checking Account - IDA Ops 880,274$                  9%
Orange Bank & Trust Checking Account - Accelerator Ops 91,959$                    1%
M&T Bank Account -$                               0%
Orange Bank & Trust Checking Account - Trust Escrow 31,382$                    0%
Total CDs & Treasuries Certificates of Deposit & Treasuries 8,458,782$              89%

0%
9,462,396$              100% -$                   

Banks Accounts/Certificates of Deposit/Money Markets Accounts
As of January 31, 2023

44



Check Request (Money that Needs  to  be  Moved)
OCFC Loan Payments deposited in 
incorrect Account 1,798.63$                       

West Warwick 1, 2,&3 30,000.00$                     
Royal Wine 55,000.00$                     

`

Grand Total 86,798.63$                     

* = Approved Prior

Orange County Industrial Development Agency
Orange County Funding Corp.

February 2023

To:  OCFC      From:  OCIDA    
Check # 2851  

To:  Orange Bank and 
Trust(Escrow)   From: OCIDA  

45



Approv ID (Multiple Items)
Category Recurring Bldg Services
Amt Y

Vendor Invoice Purpose/Description Location Service Date(s) Sum of Amount
Orange & Rockland 26670-19018 Electricity Warwick 12/19/22-1/19/23 1,111.42

Orange & Rockland Total 1,111.42
Complete Document Solutions IN549879 B/W & Color Copies 4 Crotty Ln 1/2/23 - 2/3/23 167.80

Complete Document Solutions Total 167.80

Xerox Financial Service 3763693 Copier Lease payment, 
Protection, Late fee

4 Crotty Ln 1/15/23 - 2/14/23 305.59

Xerox Financial Service Total 305.59
First Columbia 4-LA, LLC 6070-100-20221222 Gas & Electric 4 Crotty Ln 10/18/22-11/17/22 503.06

6070-100-20230112 Gas & Electric 4 Crotty Ln 11/18/22-12/16/22 639.21
6070-100-20230123 Gas 4 Crotty Ln 11/18/22-12/16/22 151.66

First Columbia 4-LA, LLC Total 1,293.93
ALTEVA OF WARWICK 1014804 Internet Warwick 2/1/23-2/28/23 90.71

ALTEVA OF WARWICK Total 90.71

88 Studio,  LLC (blank)
Website, Google,  Go 
Daddy, Meeting  Support

4 Crotty Ln 1/1/23 - 1/31/23 2,500.00

88 Studio,  LLC Total 2,500.00
KR Cleaning -- Cleaning 4 Crotty Ln January 2022 650.00

KR Cleaning Total 650.00
Loewke Brill Consulting 16-011-078 Site Visits & Reporting 4 Crotty Ln 1/31/23 2,840.00

Loewke Brill Consulting Total 2,840.00

Crystal  Rock 21066678  020323
Water, bottle deposit, 
delivery fee,Late charge

4 Crotty Ln January  2023 22.01

Crystal  Rock Total 22.01

ITC 7117
Access Point Billing for one 
month

4 Crotty Ln February 2023 148.80

ITC Total 148.80
Town of Warwick 46-1-39.22*00 Water & Sewer Warwick 10/1/22-12/31/22 751.45

Town of Warwick  Total 751.45
Cardmember Service (OB&T 
Visa)

53527392
Go Daddy (5 Users @ 17.29 
ea)

4 Crotty Ln '12/09/22 - 1/09/23 86.45

QuickBooks Online (3 Users 
@ 91.91 ea)

4 Crotty Ln '12/09/22 - 1/09/23 275.73

Interest 4 Crotty Ln '12/09/22 - 1/09/23 28.14
Adobe Acrobat 4 Crotty Ln 12/09/22 - 1/09/23 259.37

Cardmember Service (OB&T 
Visa) Total

649.69

Credit Card Payment  Processing (M&T Bank Visa) 3074 Zoom 4 Crotty Ln 1/2023 - 2/2023 40.00
Stamps.com 4 Crotty Ln 1/07/2023 19.45
Google (the-
accelerator.com)

4 Crotty Ln 12/31/2022 38.93

Google (ocnyida.com) 4 Crotty Ln 12/31/2022 230.31
Fees 4 Crotty Ln 12/17/2022 -1.51
Delancey's 4 Crotty Ln 12/21/2022 225.08
OC Chamber Membership 
Meeting

4 Crotty Ln 1/12/2023 35.00

Payments 4 Crotty Ln 12/17/2022 -521.83
Credit Card Payment  Processing (M&T Bank Visa) Total 65.43

EA Workforce / Staffline - IDA Staff - Gross Wages 4 Crotty Ln January 2023 25,646.64
EA Workforce / Staffline Total 25,646.64

Zultys, Inc. 345562 Office Phones 4 Crotty Ln 2/1/23 - 2/28/23 214.93
Zultys, Inc. Total 214.93

OCIDA Vendor Payment Approval
Recurring Bldg Services

February 15, 2023

46



Ehrlich Pest Control 2523576
Rodent Control 
Maintenance

Warwick 1/27/2023 65.00

Ehrlich Pest Control Total 65.00
Fed Ex US Collections Dept (blank) Fed Ex Envelope Delivery 4 Crotty Ln 1/2/23 & 1/16/23 93.80

Fed Ex US Collections Dept Total 93.80
Grand Total 36,617.20

47



Approv ID (Multiple Items)
Category Monthly Contracts
Amt Y

Vendor Invoice Purpose/Description Location Service Date(s) Sum of Amount
Bousquet Holstein PLLC. 247121 General Counsel 4 Crotty Ln Dec. 7, 14, 21, 5, 2022 2,780.25

Bousquet Holstein PLLC. Total 2,780.25
Capacity Marketing 1623 Marketing and PR 4 Crotty Ln 1/27/2023 6,250.00

Capacity Marketing Total 6,250.00

LAN Associates 28404 Labor Audit - 41623.01 
West Warwick 1,2,3

4 Crotty Ln 11/26/22 - 12/30/22 3,487.50

OCIDA Vendor Payment Approval
Monthly Contracts
February 15, 2023

48



Approv ID (Multiple Items)
Category All Other
Amt Y

Vendor Invoice Purpose/Description Location Service Date(s) Sum of Amount
Delaware Engineering, DPC 22-2593-1 Shovel Ready Program 4 Crotty Ln December 2022 27,500.00

Delaware Engineering, DPC Total 27,500.00
D & M Signs, Inc. OCIDA0123 Marketing and PR 4 Crotty Ln 1/19/2023 360.00

D & M Signs, Inc. Total 360.00

Skyward Electric Company, Inc. 7127 2 Light Fixtures and 2 
sensors replaced

4 Crotty Ln 01/20/23 932.68

Skyward Electric Company, Inc. Total 932.68
Grand Total 28,792.68

OCIDA Vendor Payment Approval
All Other

February 15, 2023

49



APPROVING RESOLUTION 
 

A regular meeting of the Orange County Industrial Development Agency held on 
February 15, 2023 at 4:30 p.m. (local time) at the Orange County Government Center Community 
Room, 255 Main Street, Goshen, New York. 
 
 The meeting was called to order by ________________ and upon the roll being duly 
called, the following members were: 
  
 MEMBERS PRESENT: 
 
 THE FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT: 
 
 

The following Resolution was offered by ________________ and seconded by 
__________________: 
                                   

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE REAPPOINTMENT OF 
THE COMPANY AND ITS SUB-AGENTS AS AGENTS OF 
THE AGENCY UNTIL DECEMBER 31, 2023; AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF ANY AND ALL 
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS 

 
WHEREAS, the Orange County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is 

authorized and empowered by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State 
of New York (the “State”), as amended, together with Chapter 390 of the Laws of 1972 of the 
State of New York, as amended from time to time (collectively, the “Act”), to promote, develop, 
encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving, maintaining, 
equipping and furnishing of industrial, manufacturing, warehousing, commercial, research and 
recreation facilities, for the purpose of promoting economically sound commerce and industry to 
advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of 
the State, to improve their recreation opportunities, prosperity and standard of living; and 
 

WHEREAS, at the request of 13th Avenue Fish Market, Inc. ("13th Ave."), on behalf of 
360 Middletown Holdings LLC (the “Company”), by resolution dated November 14, 2019 (the 
“Inducement Resolution”) the Agency agreed to undertake a project (the “Project”) consisting 
of: (A) the acquisition by the Agency of a leasehold interest in an approximately 7.8±-acre parcel 
of land located at 360 Crystal Run Road in the Town of Walkill, Orange County, New York (the 
"Land") together with the existing approximately 31,534 square-foot warehouse building thereon 
(collectively the "Existing Improvements"); (B) the renovation and reconstruction of the 
Existing Improvements to house the Freund's Fish Market expansion of its production line and 
scope of distribution, to be implemented in six phases, including, but not limited to, (i) kosher 
Japanese food products, (ii) raw fish production,(iii) gelfite fish production, (iv) breading 
machinery, (v) wholesale appetizing products, and (vi) frozen foods (collectively, the 
"Improvements"), and (C) the acquisition in and around the Improvements of certain items of 

50



equipment, machinery and  other  tangible  personal  property (the "Equipment"; and, 
collectively with the Land, the Existing Improvements and the Improvements, the "Facility"); 
(B) the granting of certain financial assistance including some or all of the following: 
exemptions from real estate taxes, State and local sales and use tax and mortgage recording tax 
(in accordance with Section 874 of the General Municipal Law) (collectively the “Financial 
Assistance”); (C) the appointment of the Company or its designee as an agent of the Agency in 
connection with the acquisition, construction, renovation, equipping and completion of the 
Project Facility; and (D) the lease of the Land and Facility by the Agency pursuant to a lease 
agreement and the acquisition of an interest in the Equipment; and the sublease of the Project 
Facility back to the Company pursuant to a sublease agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company and Agency entered into a lease transaction, dated as of 
December 1, 2019, to effectuate the undertaking of the Project and the conference of the 
approved Financial Assistance (the “Lease Transaction”).  As part of the Lease Transaction for 
purposes of undertaking and completing the Project Facility, the Company was appointed as the 
agent of the Agency through December 31, 2021 (the “Appointment”), and was awarded an 
amount not to exceed $153,359 in exemptions from State and local sales and use tax (the 
"Exemption"); and 
 
 WHEREAS, by letter dated December 13, 2021, the Company advised of unexpected 
delays in construction due to the ongoing impacts of COVID-19.  As such, the Company  
requested and on January 19, 2022 the Agency approved the extension of their Appointment 
from December 31, 2021 to December 31, 2022 to provide them an opportunity to complete the 
Project (the "Extension"); and 
 
 WHEREAS, by correspondence dated January 10, 2023, January 18, 2023 and February 
8, 2023, the Company advised the past three years were faced challenges as vendors and 
contractors were struggling with workforce shortages which resulted in delays.  The Company 
has completed a lot of the work but still needs to put in the new floor, install new doors on the 
blast freezer, update some of the refrigeration and electricity and obtain some pieces of new 
equipment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in light of the delays, the Company is requesting a reappointment of their 
agency appointment from February 15, 2023 to December 31, 2023 to provide them an 
opportunity to complete the Project (the "Reappointment"); and 
 
 WHEREAS, as of January 10, 2023, the Company has a balance of approximately 
$35,178.90 in unused State and local sales and use tax exemption remaining available for the 
Project (the “Remaining Exemption”).  The Company is not requesting any additional financial 
assistance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Reappointment is in furtherance of the Financial Assistance that was 
previously approved for the Project, which underwent an environmental review pursuant to the 
State Environmental Quality Review Act (“SEQRA”), and the present Reappointment request is 
insubstantial and does not require reconsideration or further review by the Agency under 
SEQRA. 

51



 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the members of the Orange County Industrial 
Development Agency as follows: 
 
 (1) Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency, including 
but not limited to there being no event of default under the Lease Documents (as defined herein), 
the Agency hereby makes the following findings and determinations:  
   
  (a) The granting of the Reappointment does not require reconsideration or 
further review under SEQRA.  
 
  (b) The Agency authorizes the Reappointment for purposes of completing the 
Project through and including December 31, 2023, conditioned upon the Company: (i) 
representing and warranting that there are no events of default under any of the documents 
executed and delivered by the Company in conjunction with the Lease Transaction, including but 
not limited to a lease agreement, a leaseback agreement, a project agreement and an 
environmental compliance and indemnification agreement, each dated as of December 1, 2019 
(collectively, the "Lease Documents"); (ii) confirming that all insurance executed and delivered 
in conjunction with the Project and the Lease Transaction remains in full force and effect all in 
accordance with the Lease Documents and will submit to the Agency proof of insurance naming 
the Agency as an additional insured pursuant to the Agency’s requirements under the Lease 
Documents; (iii) submitting to the Agency any applicable information requested by the Agency 
with respect to the Reappointment so that they can accurately track and report Project and 
Financial Assistance information as required under the Act; (iv) executing and delivering any 
and all documents required by the Agency in connection with the Reappointment and to carry 
out the intent of this Resolution; (v) submitting any applicable  administrative fees and all legal 
fees incurred by the Agency in exchange for the Agency’s grant of the Reappointment; and (vi) 
submitting any proof required by the Agency demonstrating that the Company has not realized 
State and local sales and use tax exemptions in excess of what was authorized for the Project. 
 
  (c) This Reappointment shall be the final appointment as agent of the Agency 
for purposes of completing the Project.  No additional extension or reappointments shall be 
permitted.   
 
 (2) The Agency is authorized to execute all documents necessary to effectuate the 
Reappointment (collectively, the “Reappointment Documents”) including but not limited to 
revisions or amendments of the Lease Documents, issuance of a new Sales Tax Appointment 
Letter and an amendment or extension of the appropriate “IDA Appointment of Project Operator 
or Agent for Sales Tax Purposes” (Form ST-60) for each of the Company and any sub-agents in 
accordance with the Lease Documents; and each the Chairman, the Vice Chairman, Chief 
Executive   Officer of the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and 
deliver the documents, to make such other changes, omissions, insertions, revisions, or 
amendments to the documents referred to herein as the (Vice) Chairman deems appropriate and 
to do and cause to be done any such other acts and things, as they determine, on advice of 
counsel to the Agency, may be necessary or desirable to consummate the transactions 

52



contemplated by this Resolution.  The execution thereof by the Chairman, the Vice Chairman, 
Chief Executive Officer constitutes conclusive evidence of such approval.  
 
 (3) Bousquet Holstein PLLC, as counsel to the Agency, is hereby authorized to work 
with the Agency and others to prepare, for submission to the Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or 
Chief Executive Officer, all Documents necessary to effect the intent of this Resolution. 
 
 (4) The Company shall provide or cause its Additional Agents to provide, and the 
Agency shall maintain, records of the amount of State and local sales and use tax exemption 
benefits provided to the Project and the Company shall, and cause each Additional Agent, to 
make such records available to the Agency and the State Commissioner of Taxation and Finance 
(the “Commissioner”) upon request.  The Agency shall, within thirty (30) days of providing any 
State sales and use tax exemption benefits, report to the Commissioner the amount of such 
benefits for the Project, identifying the Project, along with any such other information and 
specificity as the Commissioner may prescribe.  As a condition precedent to the Company or 
Project’s receipt of, or benefit from, any State or local sales and use tax exemptions, the 
Company must acknowledge and agree to make, or cause its Additional Agents to make, all 
records and information regarding State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits realized 
by the Project available to the Agency or its designee upon request. 
 

(5) No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement contained in this resolution or any 
document referred to herein shall be deemed to be the covenant, stipulation, obligation or 
agreement of any member, officer, agent or employee of the Agency in his or her individual 
capacity. Neither the members nor officers of the Agency, nor any person executing any documents 
referred to above on behalf of the Agency, shall be liable thereon or be subject to any personal 
liability or accountability by reason of the execution or delivery thereof. 

 
(6) The Secretary or the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency are hereby authorized 

and may distribute copies of this Resolution and do such further things or perform such acts as may 
be necessary or convenient to implement the provisions of this Resolution. 

 
  (7) This Resolution shall become effective immediately. A copy of this Resolution, 
together with any attachments hereto, shall be placed on file in the office of the Agency where the 
same shall be available for public inspection during business hours. 

53



 
 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to vote on roll 
call, which resulted as follows: 
 
 Yea Nay Absent Abstain 
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
 
The Resolutions were thereupon duly adopted. 

54



 
STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 
     )  SS.: 
COUNTY OF ORANGE  ) 
 
 

I, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of the Orange County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 
 

That I have compared the foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the Orange 
County Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency")  including  the  resolution  contained 
therein, held on February 15, 2023, with the original thereof on file in the office of  the Agency, 
and that the same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings  of the  Agency  and  of  such 
resolution set forth therein and of the whole of said  original  insofar  as the same  relates to  the 
subject matters therein referred to. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that all members of said Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the  
Public Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that 
public notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with Article 7. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force 
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal of said Agency this 
______ day of February, 2023. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
William Fioravanti, Chief Executive Officer 

 
(S E A L) 

55


	Orange County Industrial Development Agency
	Tel (845) 234-4192
	I. Call Meeting to Order
	II. Roll Call
	Mr. Fioravanti acknowledged that all Board members were present.
	III. Proof of Notice
	Mr. Fioravanti acknowledged that notice of the meeting had been timely and properly provided.
	IV. Minutes
	MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM THE DECEMBER 21, 2022, OCIDA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING WAS MADE BY MRS. WALSKI, SECONDED BY DR. ODOCK, AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.
	Notice of Meeting 02-15-23 (IDA).pdf
	Date: From: RE:
	Wednesday, February 15, 2023




